### <u>Minutes</u>

# CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND LEARNING POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE



16 January 2018

Meeting held at Committee Room 4 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

	Committee Members Present: Councillors Jane Palmer (Chairman), Nick Denys (Vice-Chairman), Judith Cooper, Kanwal Dheer, Dominic Gilham, Allan Kauffman, Jan Sweeting, Judy Kelly (in place of Becky Haggar) and Tony Eginton (in place of John Oswell)
	LBH Officers Present:  Dan Kennedy (Deputy Director, Housing, Environment, Education, Health & Wellbeing), Laurie Baker (Manager Educational Strategy and Quality), Tom Murphy (Assistant Director of Early Intervention Prevention & SEND), Peter Malewicz (Finance Manager, Children and Young People Services) and Anisha Teji (Democratic Services Officer)
54.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)
	Apologies received from Cllr Becky Haggar, with Cllr Judy Kelly substituting and Cllr John Oswell, with Cllr Tony Eginton substituting.
	Apologies also received from Tony Little.
55.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THE MEETING (Agenda Item 2)
	None.
56.	MATTERS NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item 3)
	None.
57.	TO CONFIRM THAT ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 4)
	It was confirmed that all items were in Part I and would be heard in public.
58.	TO AGREE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 28 NOVEMBER 2017 (Agenda Item 5)
	RESOLVED - That the minutes from 28 November 2017 be confirmed as an accurate record.

## 59. **STANDARDS AND QUALITY IN EDUCATION IN HILLINGDON 2016/2017** (Agenda Item 6)

Officers introduced the Standards and Quality in Education in Hillingdon 2016/17 report and provided a verbal summary. This was the annual report which would go to Cabinet on 15 February 2018.

The report provided the Committee with an overview of the standard and quality of education across Hillingdon schools and settings for Hillingdon's children and young people. The report focused on attainment, progress and achievement for the academic year 2016/17.

In summary, officers explained despite the challenges, there had been strong progress. Hillingdon's Ofsted inspection data demonstrated an overall improvement in 2016/17 when compared with previous years with 87% of schools judged good or better by the end of the 2016/17 academic year, compared to less than 80% of schools judged good or better 2013/14.

It was reported that within the early years and primary phases performance measures continued to rise. All of the key indicators demonstrated that outcomes were performing above the national average and in line with London averages. Within the primary phase, good outcomes at Key Stage 1 meant that children in Hillingdon were now achieving more strongly than their peers nationally and were increasingly at a similar level to other children in the London region.

In relation to key stage two, officers explained that there had been strong attainment. Outcomes continued to compare positively with national averages and progress scores in writing and reading demonstrated strong outcomes. Within the secondary phase, overall attainment had improved compared to 2015/16 and were now above the national comparators. In the London Borough of Hillingdon, 27/33 for key stage 2 at 64% and 32/33 for key stage 2 disadvantaged at 48%. Overall, outcomes were moving in the right direction.

Key stage 5 remained an area for development in the secondary phase.

The Committee acknowledged that there had been clear progress and improvements.

During Member discussion, it was reported:

- The gap between London averages and Hillingdon was growing. Reading in KS2
  was a big area for concern in schools and a big focus going forward. To manage
  this there had been strong communications between officers and head teachers, a
  change of focus working intensively with schools which included working with
  specialist staff.
- Underperformance in key stage 5 was a complex area. Factors such as quality of careers advice was important. Due to financial challenges schools were keen to keep children in their sixth forms. Notwithstanding this, following the attendance at a head teacher conference, officers confirmed it was clear that schools worked together to ensure that children obtained the best results.
- Funding was DFE generated and held to account by Ofsted.
- Children with English as a second language had strong reading levels and

outperformed London boroughs. Schools worked closely with pupils and used EAL support.

- Measured reading levels had gone down as a result of testing formats being changed. The revised testing formats were introduced two years ago. There was previously a concern in relation to writing and this was reported to be poor. However concern had now shifted to a focus on reading.
- A large percentage of unaccompanied asylum seeking children needed to be supported and in many cases had no education provision in place at the point they entered the care system. Officers explained that this may be owed to age assessments taking time although there was an aim to ensure children are offered a school place within 20 days. This related to only a handful of children.
- Pupil premium funding was monitored. Schools were required by Ofsted to publish how funding was being spent, and how much was received.

#### **RESOLVED -**

- 1) That officers be thanked and congratulated for their work.
- 2) That the report be noted.

#### 60. **CONSIDERATION OF CABINET BUDGET PROPOSALS** (Agenda Item 7)

The Committee considered a report on the draft revenue budget and capital programme of the Children, Young People and Learning Services for 2018/19, along with indicative projections for the following years.

Following consideration by the Cabinet on 14 December 2017, these proposals were under consultation and discussed at each Policy Overview Committee. The proposals were next due to be considered by Cabinet on 15 February 2018 and the report would include comments from the Policy Overview Committees. Following that meeting of Cabinet, full Council would meet on 22 February 2018 to agree the budgets and council tax for 2018/19.

Overall, it was reported that despite the Council continuing to operate within the constraints of Government's deficit reduction programme, in addition to continuing demographic and demand pressures, the London Borough of Hillingdon still retained healthy balances. The Council was still also able to freeze council tax.

The report gave details of the savings proposals to meet the budget gaps and respond to the increases in costs pressures and contingency plans for development and risk. Officers gave a verbal summary of the key details.

The following contingency items related to services within the remit of Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee providing £3,326k additional funding to meet the costs of service delivery in 2018/19:

**Asylum Service (£1,885k provision)** - It was reported that there had not been a massive increase in asylum figures. A provision of £1,885k was included within the draft budget to reflect the costs of supporting unaccompanied asylum seeking children.

**Looked after Children's Placements (£797k provision)** - During 2017/18 the number of Looked after Children has remained stable at between 220 and 230 placements. However it was reported that the specific needs are generally quite complex.

**Support for Children with Disabilities (£367k provision)** - The introduction of the Children's and Families Act 2014 had impacted upon the number of Children with Disabilities remaining within the care of Children's services, with greater numbers and more complex cases coming into the system than transitioning to Adult services.

**Social Worker Contingency (£277k provision)** - As the market for recruiting Social Workers remained competitive, specific contingency provision to manage the premium involved in use of agency staff has been retained for 2018/19.

The Committee questioned the budget for troubled families. It was reported previously that there were 555 troubled families and there were now approximately 1990. Officers explained that there was a focus on the families and officers worked with families and the services the Council already had access too. The budget was working towards the expectation that the grant was decreasing. The local authority was required to report on action being undertaken to support troubled families and the LBH had done this. Data showed that families with two or more prescribed problems were being targeted.

In response to questions regarding the school capital programme, officers confirmed that there continued to be a focus on the provision of sufficient school places to meet the rising demand across the Borough. Head teachers were keen to ensure that every school place was filled to ensure full school funding.

Officers confirmed that the primary schools expansion programme phases 1, 2 and 3 had now been completed and construction works had started in relation to phase 4. The approved Phase 4 budget of £27,400k provided for three single forms of entry expansions across three sites. Officers also explained that the existing secondary schools budget had been set on the basis that the two new free schools in the north of the borough would be delivered. It was expected that a 2 FE shortfall in September 2019 would be met through provision of bulge classes.

Officers confirmed that in terms of children's centres, there had been a fairly consistent management of approach.

The Labour Members wished the following comments to be recorded:

The Labour Group on the CYP&L POC did not support the budget for 2017/18 as presented at the POC on 16 January 2018. The Labour Members did not approve the budget as additional funding was still required for childrens centres. There were reductions being made to funding and there was a concern that youth clubs were being ignored.

The Conservative Members wished the following comments to be recorded:

The Conservative Group on the CYP&L POC welcomed the budget. The London Borough of Hillingdon continued to deliver without cutting frontline services.

RESOLVED - That the Committee supported the budget and commended officers for their work in times of austerity.

Members had sight of the finalised report for the major review. Minor amendments were made to the wording of the recommendations which now read:

#### Recommendation one:

That Cabinet welcome the good collaboration between the Council and partners to work together in support of children with SEND.

#### Recommendation two:

Identification, Intervention and Transitions:

- a. That Cabinet notes the findings of the Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee that shows the importance of transition from the early years provision to the next stage.
- b. That officers continue to review the effectiveness of the tools used to support early identification.
- c. That officers monitor the effectiveness and timeliness of interventions; enabling families to have timely access to high quality interventions whilst ensuring best value for money.

Members were pleased with the structure and contents of the report. Overall, Members commended officers on their hard work in arranging the insightful witness sessions and producing a good, high standard final report.

#### **RESOLVED -**

- 1) That the Committee grants officers the authority, in conjunction with the Chairman to make appropriate revisions to the report prior to the submission to Cabinet.
- 2) The amended report be presented to Cabinet.
- 3) That the report is sent to all witnesses thanking them for their attendance.
- 62. CABINET FORWARD PLAN REVIEW FORTHCOMING DECISIONS (Agenda Item 9)

**RESOLVED** - That the Cabinet Forward Plan be noted.

63. WORK PROGRAMME - REVIEW THE WORK PROGRAMME FOR THE COMING YEAR (Agenda Item 10)

**RESOLVED - That the work programme be noted.** 

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.10 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Anisha Teji on 01895 277655. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.